UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
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COUNT ONE
The SPECIAL AUGUST 200€-2 GRAND JURY charges:

I. THE ENTERPRISE .
1. At times material to this indictment there existed a
criminal organization which is referred To hereafter as “the
Chicago Outfit." The Chicago Outfit was known to its members and
sssociates as "the 'Outfit" and was also known to the public as
“orgaﬂized crime,” the “Chicagoe Syndicate” and the “Chicago Meb.”
The Chicago Qutfit was an "enterprise" as that term is used in
Title 18, United States Code, Section 1961 (4), that is, 1t
Constituted a group cof individuals associated lin fact,.‘which

enterprise was engaged in and the activities of which affected
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interstéte COMMerce. The enterprise constituted an S ohgolng
organization whose members functioned as a continuing‘unit for a
common purpeose of achieving the objectives of the enterprise,

2. The Chicage Cutfit existed to gerierate income for 1its
members and associates through 1llegal actlivities. ‘The illegal
activities of the Chicégo Dutfit included, but were not limited to:
(1) collecting “street tax,” that is, extortion payments reguired
as the cost of operating various businesses; {2) the operation of
illegal gambling buéinesses, which included sports bookmaking and
the use of video gambling machines; (2) making loans to individuzls
at usurious rateé of interest (hereafter referred to as "qulce
lecans”), which leans constituted “extortionate extensions cf
credit,™ as that térm is defined in Title 18, United States Code,
cection 891 (6): (4) "collecting" through "extortionate means” tuice
loans constituting "ektensions of credit," =as those terms ars
Gefined in Title 18, United States Code, Sections 891(5), (7) and
(6), respectively; (5) éollecting debts bettors incurred with the
Chicago Outfit's illegal gambling businesses; (é) collecting QEbtsl
incurred in the Chicage Outfit's juice loan business, which debts
carried rates of intersst at least twice the rate enforceabls under
Illincis law; (7) using threats, vioclence and int:midation to
collect streset tax and juice loan debts; (8) wusing thresats,
violence, and intimidati;n to discipline Chicago Cutfit members and
sssociates; (8) using murder of Chicago outfit members, associates
and others o advance the interests of the Chicago outfit’s iliegal

activities; (10) obstructing justice and criminal ;nvestigations by




intimidating, bribing, retaliating ggainst, andmmu;dering'witnesses
and potential witnesses who could provide infermation adverse to
the enterprise’s interests;‘ and (11) traveling in interstate
commercs to further the goals of the criminal enterprise.

3. In erder to carry out its criminal activities, the
Chicago Outfit maintained a structure and chain cf command. The
criminal activities of the Chicago outfit were carried out in part
by sub—grouﬁs, or “crews,” which were generally given territories
in different geographic locations in the Chicago area. These crews
were known by their geographic areas, and includeﬁ the Elmwood Park
crew; she Nerth Side/Rush Street crew, the Sbuth Side/iﬁth‘Street
or Chinatown Crew, the Grand Avenue craw, the Melrcse Park crew,
and the Chicago Heights crew, Each crew was run by a crew leader,
zlso known as & street boss or “cape,” and these crew bhosses
reported to an underboss, who was sacond 1n commaﬁd of the Chicageo
outfit, and therefore referred to at times as “Number Two.” The
overall leader of the Chicago Ouﬁfit WaS referted to as the‘Boss oxr
“Numper Cne.” The Chicago gutfit alse utilized a “gconsigliere,”
whe prévided advice tec the Boss.

4. When an individual conducting illegal activities on behalf
of the Chicago Cutfit proved himself particularly trustworthy and
was to be given special status in the enterprise, he was given
“made” étatus. ‘An individual could not normally be “made” unless
he was of Italsan descant, and had committed at least one murder on
‘behalf of the enterprise. An individual had to be sponsored by his

capo before he could be “made,” which occcurred at a ceremony in
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which the person to be “made” swore allegiance To the enterprise.

This ceremony was attended by the individual’s cape, as well as
other ranking members of the Chicago Ooutfit. Once “made,” the
individual was accorded greater‘ status and respect in the
enterprise. An individual who was "made” or who comﬁitted a murder
on behalf of the Outfit was obligated to the enterprise for life to
perform criminal acts on behall of the enterprise when called upon.

5. Disputes between members -of different.cxews were ﬁc be
resclved by their respective capos, and, if no resolution could be
made between the capos, then the Boss would settle theldispute.‘

§. During the course of the conspiracy, Anthony Accardo, also
known as “Big Tuna,” and “Joe Batters;” Joseph Aiuppa, also known
a3 “Doves,” and “Joey O'Brien;” Sam Carlisi, ais@ known as “Wings;”
and John Monteleone, &also known.aS'“Johnny hpes,” among others,
acted as Boss of the Chicagé Qutfit.

7. puring the course of the conspiracy, Joseph Aiuppa, and
Jack Cerene, among others, acted as Underboss of the Chicago
outfit.

8. During the course of the conspiracy, Joseph Ferricla was
a “made" namber of the Chicago Outfit who reported directly to the
Boss. Hafry Aleman, William Petrocelli, alsc known as “"Butch,”
Jerry Scarpelli, and others, were criminal associates who reported
a2t various ﬁimes tao Joseph Ferriola.

5. Defendant JAMES MARCELLO was a member of thé Melrose‘Park
crew, WwWAS a “madé" member of the Chicago outfit, and committed

murder and other criminal activities on its bkehalf. Defendant



JEMES MARCELLO continued to conduct criminal actiwvities on the

Outfit’s behalf while incarcerated through his‘brother, defendant
MICHAEL MARCELLD; and others,.

10. Defendant JOSEPH LOMBARDO, alss known as “tha Clown,”
“Lumpy,” and “Lumbo,” was a member of the Grand Avenue cfew, and
committed murder and other criminal activities on its behalf.

11, .Defendant FRANK CALABRESE, SR., was a mempsr of the South
Side/26th Street crew, was a “made” member of the Chicagé Qutiit,
and committed murder and other criminal éctivities on its behalf.
Defendant FRANK CALABRESE, SR., continued to conduct criminal
activities cn the ouctfit’s behalf while incarceréted threough
defendants FERRIOLA, DOYLE, and others,

12, Other members of the Scuth $ide/26" Street créw were
James Torelle, also known as “Turk,” Angelc LaPietra, also known as
“the Hook,” and “the Bull,” and James LaPietra, all of whom served
as capos of this crew during - the course of the conspiracy.
additional members of this crew included, among otherﬁ, John
Monteleone, JDhn Tecarcotta, Reonald Jarrett, Jamessg DirFeorti, Frank
Saladino, Frank Furio, and Frank Santuccl.

13. Defendant NICHOLAS CALABRESElis the brother of defendant
FRANEK CALRBRESE, 35R., was‘alsw a member of the South Side/Z6™
Sﬁreet crew, was a “made” member of the Chicago Dutfit, and
committed murder and other criminal activities on its behalf.

14. Defendant FRANK SCHWEIHS, also known as “the German,” was
an enforcer for the Chicago Outfit, imposing and zollecting “street
"

tax for himself and Outfit members, and making additional



collections on behalf of the enterprise through the use of

extortionate means. Defendant SCHWEIHS also agreed to commit
murder on behalf of the Chicago Outfit.

15, Defendant PAUL SCHIRO, also known aé “the Indian,’” was &
criminal associate of defendant SCHWEIHS, “made’” member Antbony
Spilotro, and Cutiit associate Joseph Hansen, who committed murser
. and other criminal activities on behalf of the Chicago Qutfit.

16. Defendant MICHAEL MARCELLO, also known as “Mickey,” is
the brother of defendant JAMES MARCELLO, and was a member of the
Melrose Park crew. Defendant MICHAEL MARCELLO assisted his
brother’s participation in the activities of the enterprise while
defendsnt JAMES MARCELLO was in Jjail, by keeping his brother
informed of the enterprise’s activities, "delivering méssages to
peréons as=sociated with the enterprise, and carrying out illegal
activities of the Chicagoe Outfit, including the operation‘of an
illegal video gambling business.

17.  Defendant NICHOLAS FERRIOLA is the son of Joseph
Ferricola, and was a member of the South Side/26" Street crew who
assisted defeﬁdant FRANK CALABRESE, SR.'s participation iIn the
activiﬁies‘of the enterprise while defendant FRANK CALABRESE, ER.,
was in fail, by keeping defendant FRANK CALABRESE, SR., informed of‘
the enterprise’s activities, delivering messages Lo persons
associated with the enterprise, collecting monies generated by
evtortionate demands of defendant FRANK CALLBRESE, &SR., &and
carrying out other illegal activities of the Chicago Outfit,

including the operation of an illegal speorts bookmaking business.



18. Defendant ANTHOMY DOYLE, alsc known as “Twan,” 1ls =&

retired Chicago Police Department (“CFD”) officer, who, at the time

he was employed as a CPD officer, assisted defendant FRANK
CALAERESE, SR.’s participation in the activities of the enterprise

uhils defendant FRANK CALABRESE, SR., was in jail, by keeping

defendant FRANK CALABRESE, SR. informed of a law enforcement

investigation into the murder of John Fecarotta, committed by
defendants FRANK CALABRESE, SR., NICHOLAS CALRBRESE, and Dthers.‘
Defendant DOYLE also agreed to pass messages from defendant FRANK
CALABRESE, SR., in jeil to other members of the CThicage Outfit,

ingluding messages‘designed to determine whether defendant NICHOLAS

CALABRESE or James DiForti, now deceased, Was cooperating Qith law

anforcement about the activities of the enterprise. Ericr to

becoming a Chicaga police cfficer, deféndant ANTHONY DOYLE was &

juice loan collector for the South Side/Eth Street Crew.

II. THE RACKETEERING CONSZIRACY

19. From approximately the middle of the 1960s through the
date of the return of this indictment, the exact dates being
unknowh to the Grand Jury, 1in the Nerthern District of Illincis,

Fzstern Divisicen, and elsewhere,

NICHOLAS W. CALABRESE,

JAMES MARCELLO,

JOSEPH LOMBARD(, also known as
“The Clown,” “Lumpy,” and “Lumbo,

FRANK CALABRESE, SR.

FRANK SCHWEIHS,‘also known as
“The German,”

PAUL SCHIRO, also knownh as
“*The Indian,”

MICHAEL MARCELLO, also known a3
“Mickey,” -

NMICHOLAS FERRIQLA, and
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ANTHONY LDOYLE, also known as
“Twan, ” -

deferdants herein, being persons employad by and associated with an
enterprise,‘that is, the ChicagolOutfit, which enterprise angaged
in énd the activities of which affected, interstate COmMmerce, did
knowingly conspire and agree, wWith other persons known and unknown
to the Grand Jury, to conduct and to participate, directly and
indirectly, in the conduct of the affairs of the Chicago Outfit
through: (1) a "pattern of racketeering activity," as that term is
defined in Title 18, Uﬁited States Code, Sections 1961{1) and
1962 (5), and as further specified in paragraph 46 of this count,
and (2) the "collection of unlawful debt," as that term is defined
in Title 18, United States Code, Ssction 1961(6), and as further
specified in paragraph 47 of this count, both in violation of Title
18, United States Code,; Section 1962 (c).

20, It was part of the conspiracy that each defendant agreed
that a conspirator would commit at least two acts c¢f racketeering
in the conduct of the affairs of the enterprise.

21. It was further 'part of the conspiracy that the
defendants, together with other persons known and unknewn to thel
Grand Jﬁry; each agreed té zonduct énd to participate 1in the
conduct of the Chicageo Outfit's affairs through the collactien of
unlawful debt.

22. 1t was further part of thé conspirécy that acts invelving
nurder would be attempted and were committed to furtﬁer the
criminal objectiveé ~f the Chicago Outfit and protect the
-enterprise erm law enforcement, such acts involviné murder
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included; but are not limited to, the acts committed by the

following defendants as set out below:

a., In or about August, 1970, defendant FRANK CALABRESE, GSR.,
and others committed the murder of Michael ARlbergo, also
known as “Hambone,” in Chicage, Illinocis;

L. -0n or about September 27, 1874, defendants JOSEPH LOMBARDQ,
FRENK SCHWEIHS and others committed the murder of Daniel
Seifert, in Bensenville, Illincis;

c. On or about June 2¢, 1976, defendant FRANK CALABRESE, SR.,
and others. committed the murder of Paul Haggerty, in
Cnicago, Illinocis; ‘

4. On or about March 15, 1377, defendant FRANK CALABREZE, SKR.,
and othars committed the murder of Henry Cosentino in
Chicago, Illincis;

e. On or about January 16, 19878, defendant FRANK CALABRESE,
SR., and others committed the murder of John Mendell, in
Chicage, Illincis;

£. On or about January 31, 1978, defendant FRANK CALABRESE,
S5R., and others committed the murders of Donald Renno and
Vincent Moretti, in Cicerc, Illincis;

g. On or about July 2, 19280, defendant FRANK CALEBRESE, SR.,
and others committed the murders of William and Charlotte
Dauber, in Will County, Illinois;

L. On or about December 30, 1980, defendant FRANK CALABRESE,
SR., and others committed the murder of William
Fetrocelli, in Cicers, Illinocis;

i. On or about June 24, 1981, defendant FRANK CALABRESE, =R.,
and others committed the murder of Michael Cagnoni, in
DuFage County, Illincis;

i. On or azbout September 13, 1981, defendant JAMES MARCELLO
and others committed the murder of Nicholas D'Andrea, in
Chicago Heights, Illinois:

k. On or abeut April 24, 1982, defendants JAMES MARCELLO,
FRANK CALBBRESE, SR., and others committed the attempted
murder of Individual A, in Lake County, -Illinois;

1. On or about July 23, 1983, defendant FRANK CALABRESE, SR.,

and others committed the murders of Richard D, Crtiz and
arthur Morawski, in Cicerc, Illinocis;

g



m. Opn or about June 6, 1986, defendants FRANK SCHWEIHS, PAUL
SCHIRO, and others committed the murder of Emil Vaci, in
Phoenix, Arizconai ‘

s On er about June 14, 1986, defendant JAMES MARCELLO and
others committed the murdsrs of Anthony and Michael
‘8pilotro, in DuPage County, Illinocis;

o, On or apout September 14, 1988, defendants NICHOLAS
CALABRESE, FRANK CALABRESE, SR., and others committed the
murder of John Fecaretta, in Chicage, Illincis,

53 It was further part of the conspiracy that at times
members of one crew would assist members of other crews in
homicides, by condﬁcting surveillances of and Jluring intended
victims so that the victims would net be alerted that they wére
targsted foﬁ murder.

24, It was further part of the conspiracy that cash payments.
would be and were collected from numerous individuals as “street
fax” to allow those individuals to continue to conduct both
legitimate and illegitimate activities.

25. It was further part of the conspiracy that loans made &t
usuricus rates, or “Juice leans,” would be and were made " to
numerous individuals. These lcans carried interest rates generally
ranging from one percent (l1%) to ten‘percent (10%) per week, which
translate into annual rates of 52% to 520%, respectively. Tn
making these juice loans, the conspirators agreed to rely and did
rely upon the.bofrower‘s understanding at the time the loan was
made that delay or failure to repay‘the‘loans could result in the
use of viclence or cther criminal means to causs harm to the

borrower. The conspirators also understood at the time each Jjuilce

1nan was made that delay or failure to repay the loans could result
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in the use of violence or other criminal means to cause harm to the

particular borrower.

26. It was further part of thé conspiracy that “juice loan”
.payments wculd be and were collected from numercus Juice loan
debtors, whe borrowed money from conspirators at the rafes
described in the previous paragraph. The conspiraters each
undersﬁood at the time they collected each juice loan payment that
delay or failure to repay the loan could result in the use of
violence or other criminal means te cause harm to the particular
debtor. The conspirators used viclence, intimidation and threats
to collect these debts.

27. It was fuither part of the conspiracy that collections
‘would pbe made of debts incurred in connection with the juice lecan
business described. in this Count,.which business charged rates of
interest at least twice the rate enforceable under Illincis law.

28. It was further part of the conspiracy that members and
associates of the Chicégo outfit would and did knowingly cenduct,
finance, manage, supervise, direct, and own all or part cf illegal
gambling businesses in wvieclation of the laﬁs of the State of
Illinois, including illegal s=sports bookmaking businesses, and
businesses which utilized video gambling machines for illegal
Wagaring.

29, It was furrther part of the conspiracy that members and
associates of the Chicago Outfit agreed to collect and did collect
depts incurred in connection with illegal gambling businesses

dascribed in this Count,
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30. It was further part of the conspiracy that members and
szsociatass of the Chicage Outfit used vioclence, intimidation and
threats to: (1) instill discipline within the Chicago OQutfit by
compelling adherepce to  the .Chicago outfit's edicts  and
instructions: and (2) punish ceonduct by Chicage Outfit members,
associates and others, which the hierarchy of the Chicago Outfit
believed was adverse to the interests of the Chicago Outfit.

31. It was further part of the conspiracy that mnmbers and
associates of the Chicago Cutfit would and did obstruct the due
administratlon of ]ustlce by: (1} intimidating, harming, and
killing witnesses and potential witnesses who ceould provide
information detrimental to the cperations of the enterprise; (2}
providing false information to law enforcement officers; and (3)
paying money to individuals to keep them from Cooparaﬁing with law
enforcemeﬁt officials.

32. It was further -part of theée conspiracy that the
‘conspirators would and did use nominees, “fronts,” and fictitious
names to hide the proceéds of criminal activities.

3. It was further part of the conspiracy that the
conspirators would and did use coded 1énguage in their discussions
ard written materials, and utilized coded names for discussing
fellow conspirators and vietims of their criminal activities.

34, It was further part of the conspiracy that the
cmnépirators would and did collect information directly and

indirectly from corrupt law enforcement sources to determine and
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disrupt legitimate law enforcement inVeStigation into the
activities of the enterprise.

35. T+ was further part of the conspiracy that the
conspirators would and did steal, store, and utilize “work cars”
for use in theair criminél activities, including survaillance of
murder victims and cqmmitting murdérs.

36. It was further ﬁart of the ;ohspiracy that <the
conspirators would and did use walkie-ralkies and citizen band
radics to communicate amongst themselves while conducting criminal
activities, including murder.

37. It was further part of the conspiracy that the
conspirators would and did monitor law anforcementl radio
‘reguencies, and acguire radio equipment, moniteors, and crystals to
do so, in order to detect and avoid law enforcement inguiry inte
their activities, including murder. |

38. Tt was further part of the conspiracy that the
conapirators weould and did cenduct survelllance to detect the
presence of law enfercement while +hey and coconspirators wWere
committing illegal activities, including murder,

39. It was Ifurther part‘ of the conspiracy that the
conspirators would and did écquire explasives, explosive deﬁices,‘
detonators, transmitters, and rémote control devices with the
intent to murder individuals without needing ﬁo be in the immediate

viecinity of the intended victim.
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40. It was further part of <the conspiracy that the
conspiraters would and did acquire and store firearms to be used to
commit rurder.

41. T+ was further part of the  conspiracy that the
conspiratoers woﬁld and did use pagers and pay pheones in an effort
to reduce law eﬁforcement’s apbility to intercept  thelir
communications,

42, It was further part of the conspiracy that the
consplirators would and did maintain hidden interests in businegses,
from which they could recelve income not traceable to fhem.

43. It was further part of the conspiracy that the
conapirators would and did seek to maintain hidden contrel of labkor
organizations and assels.

44, It was further part of the conspiracy‘ that the
conspirators would and did maintain written racords and‘ledgers for
their loansharking and bookmaking activities.

4%. Tt was further part of the consplracy that members and
assdciates of the Chicago Outfit misrepresented, cancealed and hid,
caused to be misrepresented, concealed and hidden, and attempted to
misrepresent, conceal and hide the operation of the Chicago Qutiit
and acts done in furtherance of the enterprisé.

IT7. PATTERN OF RACKETEERING ACTIVITY

(First Alternative Ground of Liability)
46. The pattern of racketeering activity through which the

defendants agreed to conduct and to participate in the conduct oI
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the Chicago Qutfit's affairs, consisted of multiple violaticns of
the following federal and state laws:

(a) Acts and threats invelving murdar chargeable under
the law éf the States of Illincis, Arizona, and Nevada, which are
ounishable by imprisénment for more than cne year; that is, first
degree murder (Illinoisf T1lincis Revised Statutes, Chapter 38, §4-
1; Arizona: Arizona Revised Statutes §13;1105), conspiracy to
commit murder (Illinois: Illinois Revised Statutes, Chapter 38, §8-
2. nrizona: Arizona Revised Statutes $§13-1003; Nevada: Nevada
Revised Statutes §199.480), and attempted murder (Illinois:
Illinois Revised Statutes, Chapter 38, §8-4):

{b) Making and conspiring toznake'extmrtionate extensioné
of credit, indictable undér Title 18, United States Code, Section
B92;

(¢} Collecting and ccnspiring to collect extensidns of
credit by exterticnate means, indictable under Title 18, Uriited
States Code, Section B894: |

{d) Interference with commerce by threats and vioclence,
and conspiring to commit this offense,'indiCtable under Title 18,
United States Code, Section 10951;

(e) Acts and threats involving extortion in viglation of
state law, which are‘punishable by imprisconment for more than one
year;lthat is, intimidation, in viclatien of Chapter 38, Illinois
Revised Statutes, §12-6 (which later became 720 ILCS 5/12-6 of the

Illinois Compiled Statutes) and conspiracy to commit intimidation,
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in violation of Chapter 38, Illinois Revised Statutes, §8-2 (which

later became 720 ILCS 5/8-2 of the Illineois Compiled Statutes):

(f} Operating an illegal gambling business indictable
under Titlella, United Statesz Code, Section 12I5;

(g) Dbstruéting the due administratibn of djustics,
indictable‘under Title 18, United States Code, Section 1503;

(h) Obstruction of criminal investigaticns, indictable
under Title 18, United States Code, Sectieon 1510;

(i) Witness tampering, imdictable under Title 18, United
States Cdde, Section 1512;

{j) Retaliating against a witness, indictablg under Title
18, United 3tates Code, Section 1513;

(k) Interstate travel in aid of racketeering enterprises,
indictable under Title 18, United States Code, Sacticn 1952.

IV. COLIECTION OF UNLAWEUL DEBT

(Second Alternative Ground of Liability)

47, The collection of unlawful debt through which the
sefendants agreed to conduct and to participate in the affairs of
thz enterprise, consisted of multiple acts of collecting and
attempting to collect debt incurred in connecticon with thé Chicago
Gutfit's operation of illegal gambling businesses and its lending
money  at usurious rates, which loans were unenforcesable under
Illineis laws relating to usury, such gambling and loan debts
conatituting unlawful debt as defined in Title 18, United 3States

Code, Sections 1961(6) (A} and (B).
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V, NOTICE OF ENHANCEDR SENTENCING

48. FPach of the murders identified in paragraph. 22 above,
'with the exception of pearagraph 22(m), Was committed in violati@n
of Tllinois Revised Statutes, Chapter 38, §5-1, in that in each
such instance the named defendants killed the named victim(s)
without lawful justificatign in perfarming acts which caused the
death of the named viectim(s): a) intending to kill and 4o great
bodily harm to the named victim(s), and knowing that such acts
would causé death to the named victim{s), and b) knowing that such
acts created a strong probability of death and great'bodily harm to
the named victimi(s). |

49, In addition, with respect to each 'af the ﬁurders
identified in paragraphs 22(f), (g}, (h), (1), (1), (i): (n), and
(o), each murder was accompanied by exceptionally brutal and
heinous oehavior indicative of wanton cruelty, in violation of
Illinois Revised Statutes, Chapter 38, s1005-8-1.

5C. With respect to the murders identified above in.
paragraphS'EE(f), (n), (i), and (n), each murdered individual was
killed by‘the named defendants in the course of ancther felony,
namely, aggravated kidnaping, in violation of Illinols Revised
Statutes, Chapter 38, §10-2, §1005-8-1, and §9-1(b) (6) .

1. With respect to the murder of Michael Cagnoni, idenﬁified
above in paragraph 22{1), defendant FRANE CALABRESE, SR., committed
e murder of Michael Cagnoni in the course cf anoﬁher felony,
namely, arson, in viclation of Illinecis Revised Statutés, Chapter

38, §20-1, §1005-8-1, and §39-1(b) (6).
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52. With respect to the murder of Emil Vaci, identifisd above
in paragraph 22(m), defendants FRANK SCHWEIHS and PARUL SCHIRO
conspired to cemmit and committed first degree murder in violaticn
of Arizona Revised Statutes £13-1003 and $13-1103, in that FRANK
SCHWEIES and PAUL SCHIRC, with the intent to promote and aid the
commission of first degree murder, agreed with each other and
others known and unknown, and with premeditaticn, that at least one
perscon would cause the death of Emil Vaci, and that FRRNK SCHWEIHS
and PAUL SCHIRO, knowing that their conduct would cause death,
caused the death of Emil Vaci with premeditation;

A1l of the above in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Sections 1962 (d) and 1963,
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COUNT TWO
The SEECIAL AUGUET 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:
From in or before 1996 and continuing through the date cf this
indictment, in the Worthern District of Tlliricis, Eastern Division,

and elsewhere,

JBMES MARCELLO,
MICHAEL MARCELLO, also known s
! \\.Mickey’ it

THOMAS JCHNSON,

JOSEPH VENEZIA, and

DENNIS JOHNSCHN,
defendants herein, together with other persons known and unknown to
the Grand Jury, knowingly conducted all or part of an illegal
gambling business, that is, a business involving the use of video
gambling machines and devices in the western Chicago suburbs and
surrounding areas, which husiness was in substantially continuous
operation for a period in excess of thirty (30} days, which
involved five or more persons who conducted, financed, managed,
supervised, directed, and owned all or part of the business, and
which was a violation of the following laws of the 3State of
T1lirois: Illinois Revised Statutes, Chapter 38, Sections B-2, 28-
1(a (11, (3), and (5] and 28-3, which later became 720 ILCS 5/8-2,
5/28-1(a) (1), (3), and (5), and 5/28-3;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 19355

and 2.
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COUNT THREE
. The SPECIAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:
 From in or about 1998 and continuing until at least Janpuary
2003, in the Northern District of Illinois and elsewhere,
JAMES J, MARCELLO, and
MICHATL A. MARCELLO, also known &s
“Mickey,”
defendants herein, did willfully endeavor by means of bribery TO
obstruct, delay, and prevent the communication of inforﬁation
relating to viclations of criminal statutes ©f the United States by
a person to a‘criminal investigator; that is, the defendants paid
and czused to be paid a monthly sum of meoney to and on behalf of
Nircholas W. Calabrese in order to maintaiﬁ his allegiance to the
Chicago outfit and to prevent and discourags his cooperation with
law enforcement authorities;

In viclation of Title 18, United States Code, S$ections 1510

and 2.
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COUNT FOUR
The‘SPECIAL AUGUST 2006=-2 GRAND JURY further charges:
From sometime in the early 1980s and continuing until
approximately November 2002, in the Northern District of Illinois

and elsewhere,

TRANK CALABRESE, S5R., and
NICHCLAS FERRIOLA,

gefendants herein, knowingly committed extortion, as that term s
used in Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(b)(2), which
extortion affected interstate commerce as that term 1s used in
Title 18, United States Code, Sectien 1951(b)(3), in that the
defendants would and did obtain money as “sfreet tax” from a
restaurant ‘eperating in Chicage, ~ with the consent‘ of &
representative of the restaurant, induced by the wrongful use of
artual and threatened ferce, violance, and fear;

I violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections iQSI

and 2.
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COUNT FIVE

Tha SPECIAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges:
From sometime in 1992 and esontinuing until at least sometime
in 2001, in the Northern District of Illinois and elsewhere,

FRANK CALABRESE, SR., and
NICHOLAS FERRIOLA,

defendants herein, together with‘other persons known and unknown Lo
the Grand Jury, knowingly conducted all or part of an illegal
gambling business, that is, a sports bookmaking business, which
business was in substahtiallylcontinuous operation for a period in
excess of thirty (30) days, which involved five or more persons who
conducted, financed, managed, supervised, directed, and cwned all
cr pért of the'business, and which was a vielation of the following
lawa of the State of Illincis: Illinois Revised Statutes, Chapter
38, Sections 8-2, 28-1(a)(l), (3), and (5) and Z28-3, which later
became 720 ILCS 5/8-2, 5/28-1(a) (1), (3), and (5), and 5/28-3/

In violation of Titie lé, United States Code, Sections 19856

and 2.
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COUNT S5IX
mhe SPECIAL AUGUST 2006-2 GRAND JURY further charges{
From sometime in the summer of 2001 and continuimg until
" approximately November 2001, in the Neorthern District of Illinoils

and elzewhere,

FRANE SCHWEIHS, alsc known as
“the German,” '

defendant herein, knowingly did attemp£ to commit eﬁtortion, as
“hat term is ‘used in Title 18, United States Ccde, Section
1851 (k) (2), which extortion would have affected interstate commerﬁe
as that term ig used in Title 18, United States Code, Section
1951{b)(3), in tﬁat the defendant would and did attempt to Dbtain
money as «street tax”‘from an adult entertainment club operating in
& suburp of Chicago, with the consent of a represéntative cf the
club, induced by the wrongful use of actuél and threatened force,
viclence, and fear;

in viclation of Title 18, Uniﬁed States Code, Sections 1951

and Z.
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